

2018

Sports Facilities Plan

Implementation Plan Update



Table of Contents

Executive Summary
1. Summary of Project Achievements 4
2. Facility Development Guidelines
2.1 Pavilions
2.2 Floodlighting
2.3 Other Facilities and Infrastructure7
3. Prioritisation of Capital Works Projects
3.1 Sports Facility Prioritisation Criteria
4. Implementation of Priority Projects
4.1 Financial Implications
4.2 External Funding Opportunities12
Appendix 1 – Sporting Pavilion Functionality Elements Audit14
Appendix 2 – Sporting Reserve Floodlighting Audit17
Appendix 3 - Implementation Plan – by Sporting Reserve
Appendix 4 - Summary of Sporting Reserves and 2017/18 Facility Allocations

Executive Summary

Sport provides significant benefits for individuals and communities both directly and indirectly. These benefits include individual health and wellbeing, satisfaction and engagement in community life, community pride in volunteering and efficient use of economic and government resources with reduced poor health, absenteeism and anti-social behaviour. Sport also provides significant economic benefits by creating employment to build and operate facilities and through the secondary spend capacity of participants and spectators who are attracted to events, competitions and tournaments.

The City of Greater Dandenong recognises the critical role of sport in contributing to the health and wellbeing of the community and provides significant investment into the provision of sporting facilities throughout the municipality.

The City of Greater Dandenong currently provides 25 sporting reserves throughout the municipality, and supports the community use of five (5) school sites. These reserves provide a broad range of single and multi-use playing fields / areas that accommodate:

- 38 cricket grounds
- 18 Australian Rules football ovals
- 29 soccer pitches
- 22 netball courts (indoor and outdoor)
- 2 athletics tracks
- 5 softball diamonds
- 2 baseball diamonds
- 10 tennis clubs
- 2 bowling clubs
- 3 rugby fields
- 1 hockey field.

For summary of sporting reserves and facility allocations refer to Appendix 3.

Additionally, a range of supporting infrastructure is also provided including 34 sports pavilions, floodlighting of varying standards, cricket nets, scoreboards, coaches boxes, spectator seating, car parking / access roads and a range of open space infrastructure to support the informal use of sporting reserves.

This extensive range of facilities requires ongoing improvements to address ageing infrastructure, compliance with modern standards and to enable multi-purpose and maximum use. Additionally, new facilities are also required to cater for the growing population and respond to increasing participation levels and community demand.

This high and increasing number of sporting facilities requires a strategic and coordinated approach to ensure resources are appropriately targeted to maximise community benefit and respond to greatest need.

Review of the Sports Facilities Plan 2015

The Sports Facilities Plan 2015 was undertaken to guide the planning and strategic delivery of new and improved sporting facilities throughout the City of Greater Dandenong. This Implementation Plan Update will replace the previous Implementation Plan outlined in the Sports

Facilities Plan 2015 and specifically addresses the changes in the prioritisation of Capital Works Projects. This Update also includes Lawn Bowls and Tennis infrastructure which was previously addressed in the Lawn Bowls Plan 2015 and Tennis Plan 2015.

1. Summary of Project Achievements

The City of Greater Dandenong has made significant progress in the implementation of priority actions outlined in the Sports Facilities Plan 2015. This includes an investment of over \$16,589,321 in sports facility improvements since the Plan was adopted in 2015. This figure includes \$5,555,150 in grants and contributions received from external stakeholders and represents approximately one-third of total project expenditure.

The following table provides a summary of the sports facility improvement projects undertaken since 2014/15, which equates to 75% of projects identified in the Sports Facilities Plan 2015 (for the same period).

Several additional projects have also been undertaken such as facility planning / feasibility studies, scoreboard upgrades and ongoing asset renewal works, which were outside the scope of the Sports Facilities Plan 2015.

Pavilion improvements								
✓ Tatterson Park – Construction of new pavilion	\$11,666,000							
✓ Coomoora Reserve – Pavilion and amenity improvements (stage 2)	\$593,043							
✓ Edinburgh Reserve – Pavilion upgrade	\$1,085,000							
✓ Greaves Reserve – Alan Carter pavilion upgrade (stage 2)	\$1,411,978							

Flo	Floodlighting installations / upgrades								
✓	Barry Powell Reserve – Main ground lighting upgrade	\$300,000							
✓	Police Paddocks (Soccer) – Lighting upgrade pitches 2 and 3	\$250,000							
✓	Tatterson Park – Installation of lighting on oval 2	\$400,000							

Other facility improvements	
✓ Rosswood Tennis Club – Court resurfacing (stage 1)	\$250,000
✓ Police Paddocks (Soccer) – Soccer carpark and access road	\$45,000
✓ Frederick Wachter Reserve – Cricket nets upgrade	\$150,000
✓ Dandenong Park - Shepley Oval cricket nets upgrade and reorientation	\$20,000
✓ Barry Powell Reserve – Cricket nets upgrade	\$250,000
✓ Frederick Wachter Reserve - Keysborough Tennis Club - Court resurfacing	\$168,300

Projects underway								
✓ Tatterson Park – Synthetic soccer pitch construction								
✓ Thomas Carroll Reserve – Pavilion upgrade design								
✓ Alex Nelson Reserve – Pavilion redevelopment construction								
✓ Robert Booth Reserve – Baseball pavilion redevelopment construction								
✓ Greaves Reserve – Soccer pitch/ground lighting upgrade								
✓ Noble Park Reserve – Cricket net upgrade (Turf)								
✓ Warner Reserve - Springvale North Tennis Club - Lighting upgrade								

Since the adoption of the Sports Facilities Plan 2015, Council has made significant progress overcoming some challenges surrounding the provision of sport and recreation facilities in

Greater Dandenong. These include managing limited available space through the co-location of clubs at facilities, conversion of football ovals to multi-use sports fields (i.e. to include soccer pitches) and the upgrade of lighting to enable year-round usage at previously limited grounds.

Improvements to pavilions and floodlighting have primarily been undertaken at venues that cater for both male and female, and junior and senior participants. Pavilion improvement works at Coomoora Reserve have resulted in the provision of unisex change rooms providing flexibility for matches with both male and female teams, and catering for multiple teams and playing fields.



(Greaves Reserve, Dandenong)

2. Facility Development Guidelines

Facility development guidelines have been prepared in accordance with the facility hierarchy to ensure the development of new, and upgrade of existing facilities are undertaken to an appropriate standard. Such guidelines aim to optimise sporting facilities to ensure they meet identified sporting requirements and provide flexible, user friendly facilities for the broader community.

Facility guidelines have been adapted from those outlined in the Sports Facilities Plan 2015, with consideration given to the requirements of specific sports and current best practice.

It is acknowledged that many existing facilities do not comply with the following guidelines. These guidelines are intended to manage the future provision of new facilities and where practical, the upgrade of existing facilities and infrastructure.

2.1 Pavilions

	Premier classification	Community classification
Change rooms - each (2 required per playing field)		
- Australian Rules / Cricket	55m ² +	45m ²
- Soccer	25m ²	25m ²
- Rugby	35m ²	
- Hockey / Baseball / Softball	30m ² +	30m ² +
Toilets / showers (unisex)		
- Australian Rules / Cricket	25m ²	25m ²
- Soccer / Rugby / Hockey / Baseball / Softball	20m ²	15m ² – 20m ²
Internal accessible toilet / shower	8m ²	8m ²
Umpires / referees change room and amenities		
- Australian Rules / Cricket	15m ²	15m ²
- Soccer	20m ²	20m ²
- Rugby / Hockey / Baseball / Softball	15m ² – 20m ²	15m ² – 20m ²
Medical / first aid room	10m ² - 15m ²	10m ²
Social / multi-purpose social space	Variable	Variable
Public toilets (male, female and accessible)	35m ²	25m ² - 35m ²
Kiosk / kitchen	25m ² – 30m ²	20m ² – 25m ²
Storage (tenant groups)	20m ²	15m ² – 20m ²
Utility / cleaners room	5m ²	5m ²
Meeting room / office	20m ²	15m ² – 20m ²
Covered spectator area	Variable, 75m ² +	Variable, 50m ² +
Waste / rubbish storage areas	\checkmark	✓
Timekeepers / score (Australian Rules / Cricket)	\checkmark	✓
Public address system	\checkmark	
Soccer - media and operations viewing area	\checkmark	
Soccer - broadcast point	\checkmark	
Soccer - covered players race	\checkmark	

Note: Pavilion guidelines are based on servicing a single playing field. Two change rooms and associated player amenities are required for each playing field.

All facility improvements will be undertaken in accordance with relevant legislation and regulations (i.e. Building Code of Australia, Commonwealth Disability Discrimination Act) and consider universal design principles, ecologically sensitive design and crime prevention though environmental design etc.

Table 2.1 Pavilions on the previous page summarises the type and approximate size of various elements to be contained within new/upgraded sporting pavilions. This table is intended to be used as a guide only and is subject to detailed planning and consultation. Information has been sourced from various reference documents from state sporting associations (i.e. AFL Preferred Facility Guidelines 2012; Football Federation Victoria Rules of Competition 2013) and from benchmarking with other local government authorities.

In addition to the above guidelines and principles for sporting facilities, Council will endeavour to develop sporting pavilions which:

- complement the natural and built forms of the surrounding area.
- include unisex wet areas and toilet facilities.
- incorporate accessible and inclusive design principles and a multi-use community facility (where possible).
- consolidate multiple buildings within recreation reserves (where feasible).
- include a community engagement / consultation plan incorporating a review of future management arrangements.

2.2 Floodlighting

	Premier classification	Community classification
Floodlighting - Australian Rules, Rugby, Soccer - Baseball / Softball (infield) - Hockey - Netball (outdoor)	Competition, 200 lux Competition, 500 lux* Competition, 500 lux Competition, 200 lux	Training, 100 lux Training, 200 lux - Training, 100 lux

* Baseball / softball lux levels are based on Class 11 for regional level competition (infield average lux) as per Baseball Victoria Lighting Standards Policy 2014.

The following recommendations are in addition to the above lighting standards.

- All lighting projects be planned and implemented by qualified lighting contractors in consultation with relevant peak bodies and in accordance with the Australian Standard 2560 Series and other relevant reference documents (i.e. 'Sport and Recreation Victoria Community Sporting Facility Lighting Guide for Australian Rules Football, Football (soccer) and Netball, 2012', and Baseball Victoria Lighting Standards Policy 2014).
- A combination switch (that allows 50 / 100 lux lighting levels) be considered for all new training lighting installations and upgrades to enable flexible and efficient use.
- Competition standard lighting be limited to the main playing area/s (at 'premier' facilities), that are intended to be used for night competition.
- All lighting projects be undertaken in accordance with clearly demonstrated need and as identified in the Sports Facilities Plan Implementation Plan Appendix 1.

2.3 Other Facilities and Infrastructure

Dimensions for playing areas have not been included within this report, but are available from relevant peak bodies and associated reference material such as the AFL Preferred Facility Guidelines 2012; Football Federation Victoria Rules of Competition 2013; Netball Court Planning Guide 2009 and Baseball Victoria Regulations for New Baseball Fields 2014.

A range of other sporting infrastructure may also be required at sporting reserves depending on the type of use i.e. practice cricket nets, scoreboard, coaches' box / interchange shelter and undercover seating. Landscaping, shade trees and open space infrastructure greatly enhance the amenity of sporting reserves and encourage participation in informal sport and recreation

activities. Such infrastructure includes elements such as seating, signage, shade structures, picnic facilities, drinking fountains, bike racks, outdoor gym equipment and playgrounds.

3. Prioritisation of Capital Works Projects

The Sports Facilities Plan 2018 proposes a large number of capital works projects. Such projects aim to improve the quality and availability of sporting facilities throughout the municipality in accordance with identified standards and community needs.

The range of capital works projects has been expanded to include the following sporting facilities and supporting infrastructure:

- Sports pavilions
- Floodlighting
- Cricket practice nets
- Synthetic playing fields
- Tennis facilities
- Lawn Bowls facilities
- Minor sporting infrastructure projects (i.e. scoreboards, coaches' boxes etc.).

Sportsgrounds / surface upgrades have been identified and referred to Council's Parks and City Improvement Departments for implementation.

The demand on Council to fund improvements to sporting facilities far exceeds available resources. Developing a process to prioritise projects that is fair and equitable ensures support for projects that demonstrate the greatest overall merit, whilst giving Council a solid foundation to apply for external funding assistance.

Councils aim is to ensure that all sporting reserves have the following minimum sporting infrastructure:

- A pavilion that meets the elements detailed in table 2.1 Pavilions. This will ensure that facilities meet female and junior friendly and Disability Discrimination Act requirements to provide inclusive facilities;
- Floodlighting to a training standard (except for Tennis & Lawn Bowls which are to be at Competition Standard);
- An electronic scoreboard per pitch/court/oval; and
- That the existing playing surface is in good condition.

A review of all sporting reserves has been conducted in regard to the pavilion elements as per table 2.1 Pavilions (appendix 1) and floodlighting (appendix 2).

Note 1: An audit of scoreboards and coaches' boxes at each reserve is underway and will be used to inform the assessment of minor infrastructure projects.

Note 2: An audit of sporting reserve playing surfaces will be conducted to provide guidance on surface improvements.

3.1 Sports Facility Prioritisation Criteria

The criteria used to assess identified capital works projects has been revised from the Sports Facilities Plan 2015 to incorporate a broader range of projects, whilst ensuring consistency with Council's principles for sport and active recreation.

All projects have been assessed by applying a score to the following criteria, with a total score defining the priority of the project for funding purposes. Priorities ranging from 'low' to 'very high' were then provided for each project.

1	Asset Management All projects (pavilions, floodlighting, cricket nets): Sportsground improvements: a. Age and condition of existing infrastructure a. Condition of existing surface b. Design/functionality compliance b. Provision / condition of irrigation c. Safety / risk management issues c. Provision / condition of drainage (NB: The absence of required / identified facilities is also recognised within this criteria.)									
2	Participation Demand for facilities based on current participation / utilisation levels and trends.									
3	Community Benefit and Club Usage Increasing capacity of facilities, ability to service multiple grounds and provision of health / community benefits including multi-use, access for females, juniors, people with a disability etc. Expressed demand / justified community need based on current issues, usage requirements, site potential and/or strategic influences.									
4	Hierarchy Level to which development guidelines are met according to facility classification / hierarchy (for premier, community and school sport facilities).									
5	Partnerships Potential for partnerships and funding support (capital and/or operational commitments). Eligibility for state funding grants.									

Due to the nature of minor sporting infrastructure improvements (i.e. scoreboards, coaches' boxes etc.) these projects will be subject to a simplified assessment process based on the following criteria:

- a) Asset management including risk management and compliance
- b) Participation
- c) Facility hierarchy
- d) Partnerships / club contribution.

The criteria 'Partnerships / club contribution' refers to the potential for club contributions as per the Sporting Capital Contributions Policy 2016. These minor infrastructure projects generally have lower costs, a limited ability to increase participation, improve health and wellbeing, or cater for multiple groups. Projects such as the installation of electronic scoreboards will generally benefit a single user group and should therefore be considered as part of the proposed policy.

All projects will initially be allocated a score of 0 under the proposed 'partnerships / club contributions' criteria and Council will endeavour to progressively implement projects in priority order (i.e. scoreboards or coaches' boxes at premier venues with high participation numbers and identified risk management issues will receive the highest priority). However, it is proposed that clubs who are prepared to contribute to these projects would receive an adjusted score which would subsequently reduce the timelines for implementation.

4. Implementation of Priority Projects

Specific actions for improvements to sporting facilities and supporting infrastructure are listed in the Implementation Plan on the following pages.

All potential future projects have been assessed and prioritised in accordance with the 'Sports Facility Prioritisation Criteria' (Section 3.1) and these have been detailed with their level of priority as per appendix 3. Timelines for the implementation of all sports facility projects will be subject to available resources and funding availability.

Due to the high number of sporting facilities and potential improvement projects, the Implementation Plan is presented as follows:

Implementation Plan – by Sporting Reserve (Appendix 3)

The plan contains a summary of potential future works for each sporting reserve in Greater Dandenong using the following priority rating:

- High (priority score: 19 to 25)
- Medium (priority score: 13 to 18)
- Low (priority score: < 13)

The plan lists prioritised capital projected for implementation based on the budget outlined in Council's Long Term Financial Strategy (LTFS) and includes an allowance for external grants and contributions. Sports facility projects are proposed for each financial year (up to five years) based on the priority list of projects and will be submitted as part of the annual Capital Improvement Program. Additionally, an allowance has been made each year for the following:

- Minor Sporting Infrastructure Program the upgrade / installation of electronic scoreboards, coaches' boxes and other minor infrastructure items.
- Cricket Net Improvement Program the upgrade or installation of one set of cricket practice nets each year.

Council's Sport and Recreation Team will work in collaboration with a number of other Council departments to implement the projects identified in this update, in addition to sports ground / surface improvements (i.e. installation of drainage and irrigation) which will be undertaken with assistance from Council's Parks and City Improvement Departments.

Council's Sport and Recreation Team will also be responsible for regularly monitoring the Implementation Plan in response to changes to participation data and trends, detailed cost estimates, funding availability and the outcome of feasibility studies and reserve master plans etc.

The Implementation Plan timelines have been produced with a view to complete the following projects each financial year subject to funding approval:

- Up to two pavilion redevelopments
- Up to two lighting projects
- Two design projects
- One other project.

Based upon the annual implementation mix detailed above it is forecast that to achieve the aim of providing all Council sporting reserves with minimum infrastructure requirement that it will take, based on the current sporting pavilion and floodlight audit (appendix 1 & 2):

- Sporting Pavilions = 20 projects (minimum 10 years)
- Floodlights = 49 lighting projects (minimum 25 years)

At the current rate of up to two lighting projects per financial year the 49 lighting projects will take at least 25 years to complete. This is based on an average of \$1,384,285.70 per financial year. It

is recommended that these projects be completed over a 10 year period which would result in an average of \$3,460,714.20 per financial year.

4.1 Financial Implications

The Sports Facilities Plan 2018 identifies a significant number of sporting facility improvement projects.

The City of Greater Dandenong will continue to direct resources towards the progressive improvement of sporting facilities throughout the municipality in accordance with Council's Long Term Financial Strategy. However the timelines to implement individual projects will be subject to funding availability, including the acquisition of external funding, such as government grants.

There may be instances where some longer term actions are undertaken earlier due to external funding being made available or taking into account other Council priorities. Conversely, some actions may be deferred due to funding being unavailable (i.e. due to unsuccessful grant applications).

The Implementation Plan contains indicative cost estimates for each proposed project based on the following:

Pavilion Upgrades / Redevelopments – Based on actual costs of recent / current pavilion works which have ranged from \$800,000 (George Andrews – internal refurbishment) to \$2.4 million (Warner Reserve – redevelopment / new building). A summary of the scale and cost range of pavilion improvements is summarised in the following table which forms the basis for indicative cost estimates outlined in the Implementation Plan.

It should be noted that all pavilion upgrades are proposed to be implemented over a twoyear period to enable the detailed design (and more accurate cost estimates) to be undertaken / sought in year one and building works to occur in year two.

Internal refurbishment – minor upgrade	\$500,000
Internal refurbishment – major upgrade	\$1,250,000
Extension, expansion and refurbishment (including internal reconfiguration) Additional allowance required for community facilities	\$2,000,000
Redevelopment of pavilion (demolish and rebuild) Dependent on scale and standard	\$3,000,000
Development of major new pavilion (i.e. Tatterson Park)	Dependent on scale and standard

Design for buildings has been factored as 10% of the total build.

- **Floodlighting Upgrades and Installations** Cost estimates have been sought from a specialist lighting consultant and include an allowance for power upgrades.
 - \$300,000 for a soccer pitch. A 10% allowance of the total build cost is allowed for design.
 - \$700,000 for an AFL/Cricket oval. A 10% allowance of the total build cost is allowed for design.
 - Floodlighting upgrades for Tennis and Bowling Clubs are to include Light-emitting Diode (LED) lighting from an Ecologically Sustainable Development (ESD)

standard. An allowance of \$200,000 per two courts has been allowed including design and construction.

- Active Reserves Renewal Program An allowance of \$300,000 per annum has been provided based on the cost of recent projects including:
 - Electronic scoreboard \$40,000
 - Time keepers box \$100,000
 - Coaches box \$10,000
 - Cricket practice net upgrades \$200,000 (based on a set of three cricket nets)
 - Fencing: cost estimates are based on the meterage required and the height/type of fencing including installation and supply costs for Council's schedule of rates.
- **Tennis Court Resurfacing** An allowance of \$80,000 per court (for synthetic grass) has been provided based on the cost of recent projects.

• Project Inclusions and Additions

- <u>Site Surrounds and Security</u>: An allowance of \$50,000-\$100,000 for paths, landscaping, outdoor furniture, bins, security alarms and Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV).
- <u>Environmental Sustainability:</u> An allowance of 6% of the total project for environmental sustainability inclusions such as timed showers, solar panels, solar hot water, water saving devices, rainwater tanks for wash down/toilet flush, sensor lighting and LED's.
- <u>Indoor Furniture:</u> An allowance of \$20,000 for tables, chairs and other furniture requirements.
- <u>Appliances:</u> An allowance of \$50,000 for kitchen appliances, such as dishwashers, fridges, ovens, stove tops, deep fryers and exhaust fans.
- <u>Specific Sport Requirements:</u> Additional sport requirements may be required dependent on the proposed sports to be conducted at the adjacent fields. For example, football (soccer) fencing/players races. Cost will be dependent on the requirements.
- <u>Ground Upgrades</u>: A holistic approach to provide a staged upgrade of the surrounding assets to the pavilion to ensure that the pavilion project can maximise utilisation by all stakeholders. For example, upgrade of oval/pitch drainage, lighting, fencing, scoreboards.

No allowance has been made for escalation or contingency costs and it is envisaged that these costs will be applied as part of the annual review and budgeting process.

We also need to consider the following ongoing costs:

- <u>Operational Costs:</u> Such as utilities, security monitoring, parks maintenance, change overs/inspections. Set at 1% per annum of the building cost.
- <u>Building Maintenance Costs:</u> Set at 1% per annum of the building cost.
- <u>Building renewal:</u> On a 20-year basis.

4.2 External Funding Opportunities

As previously advised, the Implementation Plan assumes an annual allowance of grant funding and contributions to assist with the execution of sporting facility improvements. Potential external funding sources are outlined below.

Grant Opportunities

• Sport and Recreation Victoria (SRV) Community Facility Funding Program

- Major Facilities Funding of up to \$800,000 available (where the total project cost is more than \$500,000 excluding GST). Funding ratio SRV \$1: \$3 local.
- Minor Facilities Funding of up to \$250,000 available. Funding ratio SRV \$1: \$1 local.
- Female Friendly Facilities Funding of up to \$500,000 available. Councils may apply for total maximum funding up \$500,000 consisting of one or more applications. Funding ratio SRV \$1: \$1 local.
- Planning Funding of up to \$30,000 available for projects focusing on recreation planning or facility feasibility in one municipality. Funding ratio SRV \$1: \$1 local.

Potential Partnerships

- Peak sporting bodies / state sporting associations
- Department of Education / local schools for joint use projects at school sporting reserves
- Collaboration with industry groups, private providers etc. (i.e. through sponsorship).

Contributions from Clubs and Associations

• As outlined in Council's Sporting Capital Contributions Policy 2016.

Appendix 1 – Sporting Pavilion Functionality Elements Audit

Sports Reserve	e / Facility H	ierarchy:	Premier	ier Community Competition					School S	Sports			
Reserve	Sport	Pavilion	Change rooms w/ adjoining unisex amenities	Public Toilets (male/female/ accessible)	Umpires Change room	First Aid Room	Social Room	Kiosk/ Kitchen	Storage (2 spaces)	Meeting room/ Office	Covered External Spectator Area	Indicative Cost	Comment
Dandenong													
Dandenong Park	Cricket	Greg Dickson	N	Ν	Ν	N	Y	N	N	Y	Y	\$935,000	Subject to Shepley Multi-purpose Indoor Training Centre Project
Shepley Oval	Cricket AFL	Keith Miller	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Not Required	
		Storan	N	Ν	N	N	N/A	N/A	N	N/A	Y	\$3,000,000	Grandstand does not meet DDA standards. Subject to Shepley Multi-purpose Indoor Training Centre Project.
Thomas Carroll Reserve	Cricket AFL	Thomas Crowe Carroll	N	Ν	N	Y	Y	Y	N	Y	N	\$2,000,000	As there are two ovals, pavilion only services one oval with elements available. Construction proposed for 18/19 budget.
Greaves Reserve	Cricket Rugby	Alan Carter	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Not Required	
	AFL Soccer Rugby Tennis	Monahan	N	Y	N	N	Y	Y	N	N	Y	\$2,500,000	Accessible public toilet not accessible as used as storage.
		Tennis	N	Ν	N/A	Ν	Y	Y	Ν	Ν	Y	\$550,000	
Mills Reserve	Hockey Soccer	Mills Pavilion	N	Y	Ν	Ν	Y	Y	N	Y	N	TBC	On-hold subject to Dandenong Oasis Master Plan
Robert Booth Reserve	Athletics Baseball	Athletics Centre	N	Y	N/A	N	Y	Y	Y	Y	N	\$2,000,000	
		Baseball	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Not Required	New pavilion under construction, to be completed 2018.
George Andrews Reserve	Soccer	Whittell	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Not Required	
Dandenong No													
Lois Twohig	Cricket	Football	Y	Ν	N	Ν	Y	Y	Y	Ν	Y	\$2,000,000	Accessible public toilet is not compliant
Reserve	AFL	Soccer	N	Ν	N	Ν	Ν	Y	Ν	Ν	Y	\$1,500,000	
	Soccer Tennis	Brooche	N/A	Y	N/A	N/A	Y	Y	Y	Ν	N	Not Required	
		Tennis	N	Y	N/A	Ν	Y	Y	Ν	Ν	Y	\$550,000	No tenant club

Police	Softball	Softball	N	Y	N	N	Ν	Y	N	N	Y	\$1,500,000	
Paddocks	Soccer	Soccer	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Not Required	
Lyndale Secondary College	Soccer	Pavilion	Y	Y	Y	N	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Not Required	Joint use agreement with Department of Education due to be renewed in 2019. Major renewal works conducted in 2017/18.
Keysborough													
Coomoora Reserve	Cricket Soccer	Pavilion	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Not Required	
Frederick	Cricket	Pavilion	N	Y	Ν	Ν	N	Y	N	Ν	Y	\$3,000,000	Draft Reserve Master Plan recommends
Wachter Reserve	AFL Tennis	Community Hall	Ν	Y	N	N	Y	Y	N	N	N		consolidation of these two facilities.
		Tennis courts	N	Y	N/A	Ν	Y	Y	N	Ν	Y	\$550,000	
Keysborough Reserve	Cricket AFL	Football /Cricket	Ν	Y	N	N	Y	Y	Ν	N	Y	\$3,000,000	To service both the cricket/football oval and netball court.
(Rowley Allan Reserve)	Netball Bowls	Bowling	N/A	Y	N/A	N/A	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Not Required	
Tatterson Park	Cricket AFL Soccer	Ian Tatterson	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Not Required	
Noble Park						•							
Fotheringham Reserve	Cricket AFL	Pavilion	Ν	Y	N	N	N	Y	Ν	N	Y	\$1,500,000	
	Tennis	Tennis	N/A	Y	N/A	N/A	Y	Y	N	N	Y	Not Required	No tenant club
Noble Park Reserve	Cricket AFL Tennis Bowls	Pavilion	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Not Required	
Parkfield	Cricket	Pavilion	N	Y	N	N	Y	Y	N	N	N	\$3,000,000	Draft Reserve Master Plan recommends
Reserve	Soccer Tennis	Tennis courts	Ν	Y	N/A	N/A	Y	Y	N	N	Y		consolidation of these two facilities.
Ross Reserve	Athletics Soccer	Social	Ν	N	N	Y	N	Y	Y	N	N	\$3,000,000	Reserve Master Plan recommends consolidation of these two facilities.
		Change rooms	N	Y	N	N	Y	Y	N	Ν	Y		
	AFL Cricket Soccer	Clubrooms	Ν	N	N	N	N	Y	N	N	Y	\$3,000,000	Reserve Master Plan recommends consolidation of these two facilities.
		Pavilion	Ν	Y	N	Ν	Y	N	N	Ν	Y		
Wal Turner Reserve	Cricket Soccer	Pavilion	Ν	Y	N	N	Y	Y	N	Ν	Y	\$1,500,000	
Noble Park No	rth					•					•		
Barry Powell	Cricket	Pavilion	N	Y	N	N	Y	Y	N	N	Y	\$3,000,000	
Reserve	AFL Tennis	Tennis	N/A	N	N/A	N/A	Y	Y	Ν	N	Y	Not Required	No tenant club

Springvale													
Edinburgh Reserve	Cricket AFL	Pavilion	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Not Required	
Norman Luth Reserve	Soccer	Pavilion	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Not Required	
Springvale Reserve	Cricket AFL	Pavilion	N	Y	N	N	Y	Y	Y	N	N	Not Required	
Warner Reserve	Cricket Soccer	Pavilion	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Not Required	
	Tennis	Tennis	N	Y	N/A	N/A	Y	Y	Ν	Ν	Y	\$550,000	
Springvale So	uth												
Alex Nelson Reserve	Cricket Soccer	Pavilion	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Not Required	New pavilion under construction, to be completed 2018.
Burden Park Reserve	Bowls Tennis	Bowls	N/A	Y	N	N/A	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y	Not Required	
		Tennis	N/A	Y	N/A	N/A	Y	Y	Ν	Ν	Y	\$900,000	
								.	=	•	(\$ 0.05		
Number of pa	avilion redev	elopment/extens	ion/returbishm	ent Project	s = 20	I otal (Cost =	\$39,53	<u>5,000 (</u>	Averag	e of \$3,95	3,500 per fina	ancial year based on two pavilion projects)

Sports Reserve / Facilit	ty Hierarchy:	Premier	Community Comp	etition Schoo	ool Sports
Reserve	Sport	Sports Facilities	Lighting Level	Indicative Cost	Comments
Dandenong					
Dandenong Park Cricket		Field (Park: turf wkt) Field (Wilson: turf	Nil Nil	\$770,000 \$770,000	These grounds are not currently utilised in winter. Drainage works would need to be undertaken before they could be used.
		wkt)			
Shepley Oval	Cricket AFL	Field (turf wkt)	Less than 100 lux (training standard)	\$770,000	
	Cricket AFL	Field – east (turf wkt)	Less than 100 lux (training standard)	\$770,000	
		Field – west (syn wkt)	Less than 100 lux (training standard)	\$770,000	
Greaves Reserve	Netball	Netball complex			
	Cricket Rugby	Field 4 (turf wkt)	Nil	N/A	200 lux when completed 17/18FY
	AFL	Field 1 (turf wkt)	Nil	\$770,000	
	Soccer Rugby	Field 2 (syn wkt)	Less than 100 lux (training standard)	\$770,000	
	Tennis	Field 3 (syn wkt)	Nil	N/A	200 lux when completed 17/18FY
		Tennis courts	Not audited	\$600,000	6 courts
Mills Reserve	Hockey Soccer	Field - syn	500 lux (competition standard)	N/A	
		Indoor court	N/A		
		Field - grass	Nil	\$330,000	
Robert Booth Reserve	Athletics Baseball	Athletics track (grass)	Nil	\$770,000	Track not utilised in winter.
		Baseball diamond 1	Less than 100 lux (training standard)	\$815,000	Proposed to be 500 lux (competition standard) as part of 18/19 FY CIP.
		Baseball diamond 2	Nil	\$815,000	
George Andrews Reserve	Soccer	Field 1 (main)	250 lux (competition standard)		
		Field 2 (junior)	Nil	\$770,000	
Dandenong North					
Lois Twohig Reserve	Cricket AFL	Field 1 (turf wkt)	Less than 100 lux (training standard)	\$770,000	
	Soccer	Field 2 (syn wkt)	Nil	\$770,000	
		Field 3 – soccer	Less than 100 lux	\$330,000	

Appendix 2 – Sporting Reserve Floodlighting Audit

			(training standard)		
		Tennis courts	Not audited	\$400,000	No tenant club
Police Paddocks	Cricket	Field 1 (syn. wkt)	Nil	\$770,000	Fields not utilised in winter in evening. These reserves are just for casual
		Field 2 (syn. wkt)	Nil	\$770,000	bookings.
ndale Secondary ollege eysborough	Softball	Field 1	Nil	\$815,000	
		Field 2	Nil	\$815,000	
		Field 3	Nil	\$815,000	
	Soccer	Field – Soccer 1	250 lux (competition standard)		
		Field – Soccer 2	100 lux (training standard)	\$330,000	
		Field – Soccer 3	Less than 100 lux (training standard)	\$330,000	
Lyndale Secondary College	Soccer	Field – Soccer 1	Less than 100 lux (training standard)	\$330,000	
, in the second s		Field – Soccer 2	Less than 100 lux (training standard)	\$330,000	
Keysborough					
Coomoora Reserve	Cricket Soccer	Field 1 (turf wkt)	Less than 100 lux (training standard)	\$330,000	Proposed to be 100 lux (training standard) as part of 18/19 FY CIP.
		Field 2 (syn wkt)	Less than 100 lux (training standard)	\$330,000	
Frederick Wachter Reserve	Cricket AFL	Field 1 (turf wkt)	Less than 100 lux (training standard)	\$770,000	
	Tennis	Field 2 (syn wkt)	Nil	\$770,000	
		Tennis courts	Not audited	\$400,000	4 courts with no lighting
Keysborough Reserve (Rowley Allan Reserve)	Cricket AFL	Field (turf wkt)	Less than 100 lux (training standard)	\$770,000	
	Netball	Netball court	Not audited		
	Bowls	Bowling pitches	One pitch out of two	\$100,000	Proposed additional pitch as part of 18/19 FY CIP.
Keysborough Parish Reserve	Cricket	Field (syn wkt)	Nil	\$330,000	Field not utilised in winter.
Tatterson Park	Cricket AFL	Oval 1	Nil	\$770,000	Proposed to be 100 lux (training standard) as part of 18/19 FY CIP.
	Soccer	Oval 2	200 lux (competition standards)		
		Oval 3	100 lux (training standard)	\$770,000	
Keysborough College (Chandler)	Cricket	Field (syn wkt)	Nil	\$330,000	Fields not utilised in winter in evening.

Noble Park					
Fotheringham Reserve	Cricket	Field (turf wkt)	Less than 100 lux	\$770,000	
J	AFL		(training standard)	÷ - ;	
	Tennis	Tennis court	Nil	\$150,000	No tenant club
Noble Park Reserve	Cricket AFL	Field (turf wkt)	100 lux (training standard)	\$770,000	
Parkfield Reserve	Cricket Soccer	Field (turf wkt)	Less than 100 lux (training standard)	\$770,000	
	Tennis	Tennis courts	Nil	\$600,000	6 courts
Ross Reserve	Athletics Soccer	Field – soccer (main)	100 lux (training standard)		
		Athletics track (syn)	Nil	\$770,000	
	AFL	Field - top (turf	Less than 100 lux	\$770,000	
	Cricket	wkt)	(training standard)	<i>Q</i>	
		Field - bottom (syn wkt)	200 lux (competition standards)		
Wal Turner Reserve	Cricket Soccer	Field (syn wkt)	Less than 100 lux (training standard)	\$770,000	
Noble Park Secondary College	Cricket	Field (syn wkt)	Nil	\$330,000	
Yarraman Primary School	Cricket	Field (syn wkt)	Nil	\$330,000	
Noble Park North					
Barry Powell Reserve	Cricket AFL	Field 1 (turf wkt)	200 lux (competition standards)		
	Tennis	Field 2 (syn wkt)	Nil	\$770,000	
		Tennis	Nil		No tenant club
Springvale					
Edinburgh Reserve	Cricket AFL	Field (syn wkt)	100 lux (training standard)		
Norman Luth Reserve	Soccer	Field (north)	Less than 100 lux (training standard)	\$770,000	
Springvale Reserve	Cricket AFL	Field (south) Field (turf wkt)	Nil Less than 100 lux (training standard)	\$770,000	

Warner Reserve	Cricket Soccer	Field (turf wkt)	200 lux (competition standards)		
	Tennis	Tennis courts	Not audited	\$400,000	4 courts without lights
Springvale South					
Alex Nelson Reserve	Cricket Soccer	Field (turf wkt)	Less than 100 lux (training standard)	\$770,000	
Burden Park Reserve	Bowls	Bowls		\$100,000	
	Tennis	Tennis		\$600,000	
Keysborough College (Heatherhill)	Cricket Soccer	Field (syn wkt)	Nil	\$770,000	
		Number of lighting projects = 49		Total Cost = \$33,915	000
		i tuiniser er lightin			,000
				Average of \$1,384,28	35.70 per financial year over 25 years (based on two lighting projects)
				Recommended - Ave projects)	rage of \$3,460,714.20 per financial year over 10 years (based on five lighting

Note: Lighting Levels are based on LUX auditing conducted on a regular basis across all reserves by an authorised consultant.

Appendix 3 - Implementation Plan - by Sporting Reserve

Reserve	Project	Priority
Dandenong		
	Greg Dickson pavilion upgrade (subject to feasibility study)	Medium
Dandenong Park	Installation of lighting (training standard)	Low
	Lighting upgrade (competition)	Medium
Shepley Oval	Indoor cricket/multipurpose training centre (subject to feasibility	Medium
	study)	Wealum
	Pavilion redevelopment	High
	Cricket practice net upgrade	Medium
Thomas Carroll Reserve	Install electronic score boards on each oval	Medium
	Ground 2 (west) lighting upgrade (training standard)	Medium
	Ground 1 (east) lighting upgrade (training standard)	Medium
	Dandenong Tennis Club – court resurfacing and removal of sloped area	High
	Dandenong Tennis Club – pavilion upgrade	High
	Dandenong Tennis Club – lighting installation (2 courts)	Medium
<u> </u>	Dandenong Tennis Club – ensure accessibility of site (exterior) with	
Greaves Reserve	Disability Discrimination Act requirements	High
	Dandenong Tennis Club – fencing repair/replacement	Medium
	WR Monahan pavilion upgrade	Medium
	Ground 1 lighting upgrade	Medium
	Ground 2 lighting upgrade	Medium
	Indoor stadium upgrade (subject to feasibility study)	Medium
Mills Reserve	Upgrade playing fields and install lighting on second pitch (subject	Martin
	to feasibility study)	Medium
	Floodlighting installation (diamond 1)	High
Robert Booth Reserve	Athletics pavilion upgrade	Medium
	Floodlighting installation (diamond 2)	Medium
George Andrews Reserve	Upgrade lighting (training standard) - pitch 2	Medium
Dandenong North		
Laia Twahia Dagama	Lighting upgrade (training standard) – oval 1	Medium
Lois Twohig Reserve	Soccer pavilion upgrade	Medium
	Lighting installation (training standard) – 4 diamonds	High
	Pavilion upgrade	High
	Install additional fencing on diamonds 3-6	High
Delies Deddeeks	Design and construct covered/shelter for dug out on diamonds 1	
Police Paddocks -	and 2	High
Softball	Install home run fence (4 diamonds)	High
	Enlarge/level practice throw space on diamonds 1 and 2	Medium
	Lighting installation (training standard) – 4 diamonds	Medium
	Install directional signage	Medium
Police Paddocks - Soccer	Pavilion redevelopment	Medium
Funce Fauducks - Succer	Lighting upgrade (training standard) - ground 3	Medium
	Upgrade key system for entry and courts	Medium
Rosswood Tennis Club	Resurface courts 1, 2 and 3 and fencing replacement	Medium
	Clubrooms extension	Medium
Lyndale Secondary	Pavilion upgrade	Low
College	Lighting upgrade (both pitches)	Low
	Lighting upgrade (both pitches)	
College Keysborough	Lighting upgrade (both pitches) Cricket practice net upgrade	Medium
College	Lighting upgrade (both pitches) Cricket practice net upgrade Lighting upgrade (training standard)	
College Keysborough	Lighting upgrade (both pitches) Cricket practice net upgrade	Medium
College Keysborough	Lighting upgrade (both pitches) Cricket practice net upgrade Lighting upgrade (training standard) Keysborough Tennis Club - construction of accessible toilet and	Medium Medium
College Keysborough Coomoora Reserve	Lighting upgrade (both pitches)	Medium Medium High

	Lighting upgrade (training standard) – oval 2	Low
	Lighting upgrade (training standard)	Medium
Rowley Allan Reserve	Football and cricket pavilion redevelopment	Medium
•	Lighting upgrade (training standard) - oval 1	Medium
Tellerson Derl	Installation of cricket practice nets	Medium
Tatterson Park	Installation of electronic score board - oval 2	Medium
	Construct storage building for synthetic pitch	Medium
Keysborough College (Chandler)	Development of amenities block	Low
Noble Park		
	Cricket practice net upgrade	Medium
Fotheringham Decense	Pavilion upgrade	Medium
Fotheringham Reserve	Remove fencing around public access tennis courts	Low
	Lighting upgrade (training standard)	Low
	Cricket nets upgrade	Medium
Parkfield Reserve	Noble Park Tennis Club – fencing repair and replacement	Medium
raikilelu reselve	Pavilion upgrade	Medium
	Lighting upgrade (training standard)	Medium
	Athletics and soccer pavilion redevelopment	Medium
Ross Reserve	Athletics track replacement	High
Ross Reserve	Football and soccer pavilion redevelopment	Medium
	Soccer and cricket lighting upgrade (training standard)	Medium
Wel Turner Deserve	Pavilion upgrade	Low
wai Turner Reserve	Athletics track replacement Football and soccer pavilion redevelopment Soccer and cricket lighting upgrade (training standard) Pavilion upgrade Lighting upgrade (training standard) Club Lighting installation – courts 5 and 6 re Pavilion redevelopment Cricket practice net replacement ve Lighting upgrade (training standard)	Low
Noble Dark Tennie Club	Image: Image and the serve Pavilion upgrade Lighting upgrade (training standard) Park Tennis Club Clubhouse redevelopment Lighting installation – courts 5 and 6	
NODIE PAIK TEITIIS CIUD	Lighting upgrade (training standard) ble Park Tennis Club Clubhouse redevelopment Lighting installation – courts 5 and 6	Medium
Noble Park North		
Barry Powell Reserve	Pavilion redevelopment	Medium
Springvale		
Edinburgh Reserve	Cricket practice net replacement	Low
Norman Luth Reserve	Lighting upgrade (training standard)	Medium
	Social pavilion upgrade	High
Springvale Reserve	Cricket practice nets upgrade	Medium
	Lighting upgrade (training standard)	Medium
	Springvale North Tennis Club – pavilion upgrade	Medium
	Springvale North Tennis Club – fencing replacement	Medium
Warner Reserve	Springvale North Tennis Club – resurface courts 5-8	Medium
	Springvale North Tennis Club – lighting upgrade (courts 1,2,5,6)	Medium
	Springvale North Tennis Club – lighting installation (courts 7 and 8)	Medium
Our when any set la Consulta		
Springvale South		
•	Cricket net replacement	High
•	Cricket net replacement Lighting upgrade (training standard)	High Medium
• •		
Alex Nelson Reserve	Lighting upgrade (training standard) Burden Park Tennis Club - replacement of clay tennis courts with synthetic	Medium High
Alex Nelson Reserve	Lighting upgrade (training standard) Burden Park Tennis Club - replacement of clay tennis courts with synthetic Burden Park Tennis Club – pavilion upgrade	Medium High High
Alex Nelson Reserve	Lighting upgrade (training standard) Burden Park Tennis Club - replacement of clay tennis courts with synthetic Burden Park Tennis Club – pavilion upgrade Burden Park Tennis Club – lighting upgrade (competition)	Medium High High Medium
Springvale South Alex Nelson Reserve Burden Park Reserve	Lighting upgrade (training standard) Burden Park Tennis Club - replacement of clay tennis courts with synthetic Burden Park Tennis Club – pavilion upgrade Burden Park Tennis Club – lighting upgrade (competition) Burden Park Bowling Club – lighting upgrade	Medium High High Medium Medium
Alex Nelson Reserve	Lighting upgrade (training standard) Burden Park Tennis Club - replacement of clay tennis courts with synthetic Burden Park Tennis Club – pavilion upgrade Burden Park Tennis Club – lighting upgrade (competition)	Medium High High Medium

Appendix 4 - Summary of Sporting Reserves and 2017/18 Facility Allocations

Sports Reserve / Facility H	lierarchy:	Premier	Community Competition	chool Sports				
Reserve	Sport	Sports Facilities	Reserve Allocation – C		Club / Association		Total	
			Summer	#	Winter	#	Clubs	P'pants
Dandenong								
Dandenong Park	Cricket	Field (Park: turf wkt)	Buckley Ridges Cricket Club	249	-	0	1	249
		Field (Wilson: turf wkt)	Dandenong Cricket Club*		-			
Shepley Oval	Cricket AFL	Field (turf wkt)	Dandenong Cricket Club	155	Dandenong Stingrays Football Club	614	2	769
Thomas Carroll Reserve	Cricket AFL	Field – east (turf wkt)	St Mary's Cricket Club Buckley Ridges Cricket Club*	116	St John Old Collegians Football Club	120	2	236
		Field – west (syn wkt)	Lion's Sports Club	90	-	0	1	90
Greaves Reserve	Netball Cricket	Netball complex	Dandenong and District Netball Association	-	Dandenong and District Netball Association	-		
	Rugby	Field 4 (turf wkt)	Dandenong Cricket Club*		South East Titans Rugby Club	489	1	489
	AFL	Field 1 (turf wkt)	Dandenong West Cricket Club	174	Dandenong Football Club	120	2	294
	Soccer Rugby Tennis	Field 2 (syn wkt)			South East Titans Rugby Club*	0		
		Field 3 (syn wkt)	Dandenong Cricket Club*		White Star Dandenong Soccer Club	255	1	255
			Melbourne Blues Cricket Club	104			1	104
			Dandenong West Cricket Club*					
		Tennis courts	Dandenong Tennis Club		Dandenong Tennis Club		1 2 2 1 1	
Mills Reserve	Hockey Soccer	Field - syn	Greater Dandenong Warriors Ho Club	ockey 213	Greater Dandenong Warriors Hockey Club	281	1	281
			Big Issue Soccer	45	Big Issue Soccer	45	1	45
		Indoor court	Greater Dandenong Warriors Ho Club*	ockey	-			
		Field - grass	Afghan Australian Social Sports Inc.	Club 42	Afghan Australian Social Sports Club Inc.	43	1	43
Robert Booth Reserve	Athletics	Athletics track (grass)	Dandenong Little Athletics	48	-		1	48
	Baseball	Baseball diamonds	Mulgrave Rebels Baseball Club	142	Dandenong Baseball Club	165	2	207
George Andrews Reserve	Soccer	Field 1 (main)	-		Dandenong Thunder Soccer Club	283	1	283
		Field 2 (junior)	-		Dandenong Thunder Soccer Club*			

Lois Twohig Reserve	Cricket	Field 1 (turf wkt)	Dandenong North Cricket Club	205	Dandenong Junior Football Club (and	85	2	290
-	AFL	Field 2 (syn wkt)			Auskick)	[2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
	Soccer	Field 3 – soccer	-		Dandenong Inter Warriors Soccer Club	118	1	118
	Tennis		-		Springers Promise Church Soccer Club	149	1	149
		Tennis courts	Public (managed by YMCA)					
Police Paddocks	Cricket	Field 1 (syn. wkt)	-		-			
		Field 2 (syn. wkt)	-		-			
	Softball	Softball fields	Dandenong Softball Association	135	Dandenong Softball Association	129	1	129
	Soccer	Field – Soccer 1	Dandenong City Soccer Club	365	Dandenong City Soccer Club	295	1	690
		Field – Soccer 2						
		Field – Soccer 3						
Lyndale Secondary	Soccer	Field – Soccer 1	Lyndale United Soccer Club	122	Lyndale United Soccer Club	107	1	107
College			-		Cleeland United Soccer Club	112	1	112
	Field – Soccer 2	-		Lyndale United Soccer Club*				
			-		Cleeland United Soccer Club*		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1	
Keysborough								
Coomoora Reserve	Cricket	Field 1 (turf wkt)	Coomoora Cricket Club	127	Keysborough Soccer Club	169	2	296
	Soccer	Field 2 (syn wkt)	Melbourne Eagles Cricket Club	42			1	42
			Springvale South Cricket Club	200	7	[1	200
Frederick Wachter	Cricket	Field 1 (turf wkt)	Parkmore Pirates Cricket Club	72	Parkmore Junior Football Club (and	370	2	442
Reserve	AFL				Auskick)			
	Tennis	Field 2 (syn wkt)	Noble Park Cricket Club*					
		Tennis courts	Keysborough Tennis Club				1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 2 2	
Keysborough Reserve	Cricket	Field (turf wkt)	Keysborough Cricket Club	234	Keysborough Football and Netball Club	251	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	485
	AFL				Keysborough Junior Football Club &	143	1	143
	Netball				Auskick			
	Bowls	Netball court	-		Keysborough Football and Netball			
					Club*		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
		Bowling pitches	Keysborough Bowling Club		1			
Keysborough Parish	Cricket	Field (syn wkt)	Keysborough Cricket Club*		-			
Reserve			Melbourne Blues Cricket Club*		-			
Tatterson Park	Cricket	Field 1 - Soccer	Dandenong Thunder Soccer Club*		-			
	AFL		Dandenong City Soccer Club*		-			<u> </u>
	Soccer	Field 2 – AFL	Keysborough Cricket Club*		Dandenong South Soccer Club	108	1	108
		Field 3 – (no goals)	Parkfield Cricket Club*		Dandenong Thunder Soccer Club*			
			Melbourne Dazzlers Cricket Club	110	Dandenong City Soccer Club*		1	110
Keysborough College Chandler)	Cricket	Field (syn wkt)	Melbourne Premier Cricket League	100	Melbourne Premier Cricket League	107	1	107

Noble Park								
Fotheringham Reserve	Cricket	Field (turf wkt)	Silverton Cricket Club*					
J J	Soccer	, ,	Parkfield Cricket Club*		Masala Football Club	218	1	218
	Tennis	Tennis courts	Public access					
Noble Park Reserve	Cricket	Field (turf wkt)	Noble Park Cricket Club	132	Noble Park Football Club	297	2	429
	AFL	, ,			Noble Park Junior Football Club*			
	Tennis							
	Bowls							
Parkfield Reserve	Cricket	Field (turf wkt)	Parkfield Cricket Club	123	Noble Park United Soccer Club	205	2	328
	Soccer Tennis	Tennis courts	Noble Park Tennis Club					
Ross Reserve	Athletics	Field – soccer (main)	Football Federation Victoria Referees	**	Springvale City Soccer Club	207	1	207
	Soccer				Football Federation Victoria Referees	**	•	
		Athletics track (syn)	Dandenong Springvale Athletics Club	45	Springvale City Soccer Club*		1	45
			Springvale Little Athletics Club	218			1	218
			Victorian Masters Athletics	59		-	1	59
			Football Federation Victoria Referees*					
	AFL Cricket	Field - top (turf wkt)	-		Noble Park Junior Football Club (and Auskick)	436 1 126 1	1	436
					Dandenong Tigers Soccer Club		1	126
		Field - bottom (syn	Old Calypso Cricket Club	48	Noble Park Junior Football Club*		1	48
		wkt)	Noble Park Cricket Club*					
		(Paddy O'Donahue)	Parkfield Cricket Club*				2 1 1 1 1 1	
			Noble Park Junior Football Club	295			1	295
Wal Turner Reserve	Cricket	Field (syn wkt)	Silverton Cricket Club	175			1	175
	Soccer		Melbourne Thunder Sports Club	35			1	35
Noble Park Secondary	Cricket	Field (syn wkt)	Buckley Ridges Cricket Club*			0		
College			Parkfield Cricket Club*					
			North Dandenong Cricket Club*					
Yarraman Primary School	Cricket	Field (syn wkt)	Springvale Cricket Club*					
Noble Park North								
Barry Powell Reserve	Cricket	Field 1 (turf wkt)	Lyndale Cricket Club	169	Lyndale Football and Netball Club	252	2	421
	AFL	Field 2 (syn wkt)	Melbourne Eagles Cricket Club	42			1	42
	Tennis	Tennis courts	Heritage Tennis Club					1

Springvale								
Edinburgh Reserve	Cricket	Field (syn wkt)	Sandown Park Cricket Club	39	Sandown Cobras Football Club	202	2	241
-	AFL		Melbourne Blues Cricket Club*		Sandown Cobras Access All Abilities	42	1	42
			Silverton Cricket Club*					
			Lyndale Cricket Club*					
Norman Luth Reserve	Soccer	Field (north)	-	0	Noble Park Soccer Club	165	1	165
		Field (south)	-		-		1 2 1	
Springvale Reserve	Cricket AFL	Field (turf wkt)	Springvale Cricket Club	69	Springvale District Football Club	395	2	395
Warner Reserve	Cricket	Field (turf wkt)	Noble Park Cricket Club*		Springvale South Soccer Club	431	1	431
	Soccer		Springvale South Soccer Club	431			1	431
	Tennis	Tennis courts	Springvale North Tennis Club	•		154	1	154
Springvale South								
Alex Nelson Reserve	Cricket Soccer	Field (turf wkt)	Springvale South Cricket Club	200	Harrisfield Hurricanes Soccer Club	485	2	685
Keysborough College	Cricket	Field (syn wkt)	Bati Trakya Football Club	36	Bati Trakya Football Club	477	1	513
(Heatherhill)	Soccer		Springvale South Cricket Club*					

* Indicates club using facility as a secondary or overflow ground. Participation numbers are shown for both primary and secondary grounds. (All participation numbers are derived from 2017/18 summer and 2017 winter player registration numbers.)